
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


October 3, 2019, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 5, 2019 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re CalPERS Unfunded Liability payoff options - Part II (Est. 


time 15 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Harrison Tank project update (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Old Monte Rio Road project update (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re District backup power (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-12, Expressing Appreciation for Field 


Manager Kevin Gilman Upon His Retirement (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 


  


VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Ed Fortner 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 


 
ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
September 5, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Rich Holmer 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel (via telephone) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:31 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:31 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 
p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
President Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 1, 2019 (Rescheduled) Board Meeting, as 
amended. 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 


 1







 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Format of the Board meeting Minutes (SW).  The 


GM provided an overview of this item.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel Rachel 
Hundley.  Board discussion ensued.  Further comments were made by Rachel Hundley.  
Further discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


 
V-B. (6:46 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Strategic Planning goals update.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel Rachel 
Hundley.  Board discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken.   


 
V-C. (7:17 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-10, Authorizing and Revoking 


Signers to the West America Bank Accounts.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Director Robb Wilder moved to Approve Resolution 19-10, Authorizing and 
Revoking Signers to the West America Bank Accounts.  Director Marquez de la Plata 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
V-D. (7:19 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-11 re Approving the Form of and 


Authorizing the Execution of a MOU and Authorizing Participation in the SDRMA 
Health Benefits Program.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Director Holmer moved to approve Resolution 19-11, Approving the Form of 
and Authorizing the Execution of a MOU and Authorizing Participation in the SDRMA 
Health Benefits Program.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
V-E. (7:26 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re CalPERS 2017-18 valuation report and District 


Unfunded Liability (UL).  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken but this item was agendized for further discussion at the 
October Board meeting. 


 
V-F. (8:13 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Board field trips.  The GM provided an overview of 


this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken. 
 
V-G. (8:19 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re SDRMA Insurance: Coverage and Deductibles.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was 
taken. 


 
V-H. (8:24 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re List of Acronyms.  The GM provided an overview of 


this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No formal action was taken. 
 
 
** At 8:28 p.m. Director Marquez de la Plata left the meeting. 
 
 
V-I. (8:28 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re CSDA Election results.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
V-J. (8:30 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water contract and CalWEP 


membership.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  No action was taken. 
 
 
** At 8:35 p.m. a brief recess was taken.  The meeting reconvened at 8:41 p.m. 
 


 2







 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:41 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. 2019 CIP 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Personnel 
8. Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law 
9. SSWD Website Update 
10. Strategic Planning 
11. North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board / Sonoma County TMDL Regulation 
12. Joint Lower Russian River and Sonoma Coast MAC Meeting in Cazadero 
13. Flushing 
14. Cross-Connection Survey and Fall Flood Warning 
15. Water Audit Validation 
16. Gantt Chart 
17. Lower Harrison Tank 
18. Lower Harrison Tank inspection 
 
Discussion ensued.  
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(9:12 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Lipinski announced Russian River Fire voted to joinSonoma County Fire. 
2. Director Robb-Wilder announced a Fire Safety meeting at the Monte Rio Community 


Center on September 21. 
3. Director Holmer announced that he would miss the October meeting. 
4. Director Schaap announced that Sonoma County Clean Power was concerned re PG&E 


outages and potential impact on SSWD emergency procedures. 
5. Director Robb-Wilder announced she would be unavailable from October 11-October 24.  
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:26 p.m.) 
 
1. District Unfunded Liability 
2. Harrison Tank updates 
3. Labor negotiations (Closed Session) 
4. Riverlane property (Closed Session) 
5. Old Monte Rio Road update 
6. Backup power discussion 
 
 


VII. CLOSED SESSION (9:30 p.m.) 
 
At 9:30 p.m. President Lipinski announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 9:32 
p.m. the Board took a brief recess.  At 9:36 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:44 
p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following action was announced: 
 


A. Conference with labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
 District negotiator: Ed Fortner 
 Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 


 3







 4


 No action was taken. 
 
B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
 Property: APN 071-220-068 17448 River Lane (old Vacation Beach well site) 
 Agency negotiator: Ed Fortner 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District  
 Direction was given to staff. 


 
ADJOURN 


 
The meeting adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Pip Marquez de la Plata       


Rich Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:31 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:41 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(9:12 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 3, 2019 
 
 Subject:  District Unfunded CalPERS Pension Liability - Part II 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Finalize a decision on if and how to address the District's unfunded pension liability 
(UL).  An extra payment towards UL should be received by CalPERS in December to 
ensure it is included in next year's PERS valuation report. 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


$120,000 to $945,000 this fiscal year, depending on the Board's decision.   Absorbing 
fiscal impacts this fiscal year will be more than offset by savings on UL expense in 
future years.   
 
The FY 2019-20 budget provides for a total of $120,000 for unfunded pension liability 
expense.  Of this, $55,451 is a mandatory payment, and $64,549 is an extra 
payment.  This does not include ongoing pension expenses, budgeted at $95,000 this 
fiscal year. 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At our last Board meeting we discussed the District's growing unfunded liability (UL) with 
CalPERS, and some options for paying this high-interest debt earlier than required.  Staff 
proposed using the District's policy reserve to pay down UL in $500,000 increments over 
two years, with a plan to reimburse policy reserves from the operating budget over a 7-
year period.  The discussion lead to additional questions about the District's policy 
reserve for FY 2019-20, as well as the District's cash balances. 
 
First, a review of the District's 2019-20 policy reserves, set at $1,379,359.  Attached as 
background is Ordinance 41, Reserve Policy, and the accompanying staff report from 
December 2009.  Based on the components set forth in Ordinance 41, each year staff 
calculates the policy reserve.  On the next page is the worksheet for FY 2019-20: 
 







Policy Reserve Components: 2019-20 2018-19


Cash Reserve 15% of annual Operating Budget $324,810 $287,308
Oper Reserve 25% of annual Operating Budget $541,350 $478,847
Capital Reserve $250,000 (25% of 1,000,000 Capital Program) $250,000 $250,000
Debt Reserve: $25% of all payment for principal and interest $263,198 $253,596


$1,379,359 $1,269,751


2019-20 2018-19 2017-18
Operating Budget Expenses $2,165,401 $1,915,387 $1,833,300
Debt payments: $1,052,794 $1,014,385 $1,009,260
    Cap One $566,558.00 $563,194.00 $564,344.00


    Citizens $216,076.42 $225,044.81 $234,013.20


    GO Bond 2013 $64,284.00 $64,284.00 $64,284.00


    State Loan $146,619.00 $146,619.00 $146,619.00


    GO Bond 2018 $59,256.25 $15,243.60


 
 
While the Ordinance sets forth a clear and thoughtful plan for determining the amount of 
policy reserves each year, it is silent on where to store those reserves.  In the past, 
policy reserves were stored in several funds at the County.  This has proven somewhat 
confusing both in remembering where these funds are stored and in tapping reserves, 
which became necessary with CIP 2018.  This year staff has streamlined policy reserves 
storage into a single fund, with the exception of policy reserves stored in our 
longstanding Building Fund, and reserves held at the pension trust (PARS) and the 
retiree health benefits trust (CERBT).  To illustrate the changes made, attached are 
three versions of our County funds worksheet: 
 


1. County funds worksheet from FY 2018-19 


2. County funds worksheet showing how policy reserve funds were 
moved around to streamline their storage (as well as funds that will no 
longer be visible because of a zero balance) 


3. County funds worksheet as revised for FY 2019-20.  Funds holding 
policy reserves are colored orange.  Note that we have also added a 
column to this worksheet for our West America bank account used to 
pay GO Bonds. 


 
Next, let's look at the District's cash as of the end of August.  The County funds 
worksheet shows reserves above policy at $1,178,311.  However, this number is 
deceptive because it includes our required debt payments.  As of the end of August we 
still have approximately $483,074 in debt payments to make this fiscal year, leaving 
$695,237 available to spend.  Most of this is located in the Capital Improvements Fund 
(aka "CIRF"). 
 


 
DEBT PAYMENTS* = STATE LOAN + CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK LOAN + USDA BONDS 


$483,074 = $146,945 + $211,963 + $124,166 
 


AVAILABLE TO SPEND* = RESERVES ABOVE POLICY - LOAN PAYMENTS 
$695,237 = $1,178,311  -  $483,074 


 
* AS OF THE END OF AUGUST, 2019 







 


The final part of this discussion is how much of the $695,237 available to spend could be 
used on our UL debt.  The short answer is almost all of it, but it might not be wise.  When 
the District took out the second USDA bond in 2018, the bond proceeds were in excess 
of our interim financing costs.  It was staff's original intent to use that excess to pay down 
UL.  However, last year's budget overruns ate into operating surpluses that could be 
transferred to CIRF.  Further, even though CIP 2019 -- the Monte Rio Treatment Plant 
Green Sand Filter Replacement -- came in under budget and is mostly paid for as of the 
end of August an unplanned emergency project at the Harrison Tank has come up.  It is 
unknown how much that will cost.  As well, if the District is to meet the projected cost of 
CIP 2021 - $914,000 - we will need about two years of saving to self-finance that project.   
 
This brings us back to the original question of whether we can (or should) accelerate 
extra payments to CalPERS for our UL.  A final attachment to this staff report for your 
consideration is a summary of various repayment schedules that was part of the UL staff 
report at the September meeting.  Staff remains in favor of paying off our UL, but using 
policy reserves to do so.  This course of action seems the best way to address this high-
interest debt without overly compromising the District's Capital Improvement Program. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 3, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 41 ESTABLISHING A DISTRICT RESERVE 
POLICY  
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt, by reading of title only, Ordinance No. 41, An 
Ordinance of Sweetwater Springs Water District Adding Policy Number 3510, District 
Reserve Policy, to the District’s Policy and Procedures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Adoption of Ordinance No. 41 would have the financial impact of 
designating a certain amount of funds as reserves that will be used only in certain, 
defined situations.  The Board will be able to direct use of the funds as long as a plan is 
established to return the reserves to the designated level. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Ordinance 41 was introduced at the November 5, 2009 Board meeting.  In 
introducing the ordinance, the Board modified Ordinance 41 by changing the 
Operations Fund from $200,000 to 15% of Operating Budget expenses and deleting 
a sentence in Section 3050.23 that allowed modification of the Capital Reserve by 
resolution.  Table 1 shows the amounts of funds that would be designated by the 
Ordinance 41 reserve policy compared to the draft reserve policy used for the FY 
2010 Budget.  Table 1 also shows the amount of funds available to the District for 
construction of capital improvement projects.   After Ordinance 41 becomes 
effective, staff anticipates coming back to the Board to revise the FY10 Budget to 
reflect the appropriate Policy Reserve amounts as part of a mid-year budget 
adjustment. 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 41.  If adopted at this meeting the 
ordinance will become effective in 30 days on January 4, 2010 and will become a 
part of the District’s budget process.   Below is a summary of the staff report for the 
November meeting that provides background on the reserve policy, revised to reflect 
the ordinance introduced at the November meeting: 
 
Reserve policies are common and recommended for public agencies.   They provide 
a “rainy day” fund for unanticipated events, establish a measure of financial health, 
and they are part of the process for determining how much capital spending an 
agency can afford.  
 







Ordinance 41, District Reserve Policy  2  
December 3, 2009 


Over the past 10 years the District has worked hard to improve its financial 
condition.  Today, that condition is good.  We are audited each year and recent 
audits have given the District good marks for financial accountability and openness.   
Operational, economic, and other possible uncertainties suggest some level of 
reserves is needed.    
 
At the same time the District needs substantial infrastructure improvements, has an 
aggressive capital improvement program (CIP) and is asking for funding assistance 
to construct the projects in the CIP.  The annual revenues of the District are not 
sufficient to fund the needed CIP and funds for these projects will come in part from 
District reserves, loans, or grants.   Some measure of the District’s reserves is 
needed to determine how much of the District’s money is available to construct the 
CIP and still stay in good financial condition, and how loans and grants can fit into 
the District’s long term financial picture.  A formal reserve policy which sets out the 
appropriate amount of District funds needed for unanticipated events, will help 
identify reserves available for the CIP while ensuring the District stays in good 
financial condition.     
 
Ordinance 41 establishes that reserve policy and places it in the District’s Policies 
and Procedures in Section 3510.  The reserve policy is based on setting aside 25% of 
Operating Budget Expenses, 25% of annual debt principal and interest payments, 
25% of a nominal $1 million capital improvement program, and cash equivalent to 
15% of the Operating Budget for ongoing operations at the start of the fiscal year.  A 
draft reserve policy based on revenues, but not including a debt payment reserve, 
was used for the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 (FY10) Budget.   
 
The Board discussed the reserve policy at its September and October meetings and 
Ordinance 41 at its introduction at the November meeting.  It agreed with the 
concept of a reserve at the 25% level, directed staff to include debt repayments in 
the reserve, and directed that the operating reserve be based on expenses rather 
than revenues.  At the November meeting the Board revised the draft Ordinance 41 
to have the Operations Fund at 15% of Operating Budget expenses and deleting a 
sentence in Section 3050.23 that allowed modification of the Capital Reserve by 
resolution.   Table 1 shows the amounts that would be in the policy reserves for the 
FY10 Budget if the Ordinance 41 policy were used, and compares those amounts to 
those in the adopted FY10 Budget.   To summarize Table 1, the Policy Reserve 
amount in the adopted FY10 Budget is $995,830; using the approach in Ordinance 
41 it would be $1,157,910.   
 
Some observations on the recommended District Reserve Policy:  
 


• The reserve policy amount sets a target which the annual budget should not 
go below.  Ordinance 41 provides flexibility by allowing going below the target 
if there is a plan to get above the target within a reasonable time.  The plan 
could involve raising rates over time, reducing CIP spending in a future year 
or some other cost reducing or revenue increasing approach. 


 







Ordinance 41, District Reserve Policy  3  
December 3, 2009 


• Ordinance 41 in Section 3510.3 defines District funds in excess of the Reserve 
Policy as Reserves above District Policy.  That identifies the amount of funding 
available for the District’s Capital Improvement Program. 


 
 


Table 1.  Ordinance 41 Policy Reserves 


    


2010 
Budget, 


operating 
revenues 


Ordinance 
41, 


operating 
expenses 


2010 Operating Revenues/Expenses   $2,183,318 $1,587,703 
Debt P&I Payments    $1,091,314 
Operating Reserve (10%+15%=25%)   $545,830 $396,926 
Capital Reserve   $250,000 $250,000 
Cash on Hand (Operations Fund)   $200,000 $238,155 
Debt Payments Reserve      $272,829 
        
Total Policy Reserves   $995,830 $1,157,910 
        
FY 2010 EOY Reserves   $3,069,581   
Funds above Reserve Policy   $2,073,751 $1,911,671 


 







ORDINANCE NO. 41 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADDING  
POLICY NUMBER 3510 TO THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES, 


RESERVE POLICY  
  
  


WHEREAS, the District wishes to establish a formal policy regarding financial 
reserves for District funds for the purposes of providing information to District elected 
officials and staff, District customers, and other observers of the District that 
demonstrate the financial health of the District, provide consistent designations for 
different categories for the reserves, define standards for the minimum amounts to 
be maintained in the designated reserves, and provide flexibility in using District 
funds; and  


 
WHEREAS, reserve policies are common and recommended for public 


agencies because they provide a “rainy day” fund for unanticipated events and 
establish a measure of financial health; and  


 
WHEREAS, adequate levels of reserves, or funds designated for various 


important purposes, are critical to the successful and stable operation of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District; and 


 
WHEREAS, maintaining adequate reserves can translate into rate 


stabilization from year to year for customers and provides assurance that the District 
can respond to short-term emergencies, including water quality issues and natural 
disaster recovery, and economic uncertainties; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the levels of reserves enumerated 


below are the appropriate levels for the purposes of the reserve policy; and  
 
WHEREAS, determining the level of reserves for the purposes designated in 


the reserve policy is an essential part of the process for determining how much 
capital spending the District can afford; and 


 
WHEREAS, the District’s reserve policy will be most readily understood and 


accepted if it is formally adopted; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff presented and the Board considered and discussed the 


reserve policy at the September 3 and October 1, 2009 meetings, and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 41 was introduced at the November 5, 2009 meeting. 
 


 







Ordinance No. 41. Reserve Policy  2 
December 3, 2009 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
 Section 1. Policy Number 3510 of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District Policy & Procedures is hereby added as follows.  
 


3510.  District Reserves.   


 


3510.1.  Purposes of District Reserve Policy.  The purposes of the District 
Reserve Policy are to provide information to District elected officials and staff, 
District customers and other observers of the District that demonstrate the 
financial health of the District, provide consistent designations for different 
categories for the reserves, define standards for the minimum amounts to be 
maintained in the designated reserves, identify funding available for future capital 
improvement projects, and provide flexibility in using District reserves. 


 


3510.2.    Components of Designated District Reserves.  


 


3510.21.  Operating Budget Cash Reserve.  The District will have a cash 
reserve of 15% of the annual Operating Budget expenses at the start of each 
fiscal year to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses for the 
coming fiscal year. 
 
3510.22.    Operating Reserve.  The District will establish and maintain a 
reserve equal to 10% of its annual operating budget expenses for the 
purposes of providing for one-time costs, dealing with economic uncertainty,   
The District will establish and maintain a reserve equal to 15% of its annual 
operating budget expenses for the purposes of dealing with emergencies and 
disaster-related expenses.  In combination, the Operating Reserve will have a 
target of 25% of the Operating Budget expenses. 
 
3510.23.    Capital Reserve.  The District will establish a Capital Reserve of 
$250,000, which is equal to 25% of a nominal $1,000,000 Capital Program.     
 
3510.24.    Debt Repayment Reserve.  The District will establish a debt 
payment reserve which is equal to 25% of all payments for principal and 
interest on all District loans in the annual operating and capital budgets. 


 


3510.25.  District Policy Reserves.  The combined amount of reserves 
designated by Sections 3050.21-24 are known as District Policy Reserves. 
 


3510.3.  Undesignated Reserves.  Reserves in District funds in excess of the 
amounts designated in sections 3050.21-24 above are undesignated, are known 
as Reserves above District Policy, and are available for use for District purposes, 
such as funding the Capital Improvement Program.   


 


3510.4.  Annual Review of District Funds and Reserve Levels.  The District 
Policy Reserves levels will be reviewed as part of the annual District Budget 







Ordinance No. 41. Reserve Policy  3 
December 3, 2009 


approval process.  The District may drop below the District Policy Reserve levels 
only if a plan is developed as part of the budget approval process that shows 
how the District will reestablish reserves that meet the District Policy Reserve 
amount.   


   
  Section 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 
thirty (30) days after the date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was adopted this 3rd day of December, 2009, on roll call by the 
following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Wanda Smith:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Victoria Wikle 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 







 


County Balances FY 2018-19 and Reserves Above Policy
 


(using FY 2018-19 Reserve)


$37,077.06 $200,945.35 $123,508.03 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $491,931.25 $71,908.65 $266,473.85 $ 2,515.75 $146,863.42 $102,315.00 $791,250.09 $2,104,091.04 $1,036,580.64


NAME


CERBT PARS
(part of Oper Res)


Operations + 
15% Cash 


Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
(part of Oper Res)


Operating 
Policy 


Reserve (25% 


less Bldg Fund and 


PARS)***


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


CIP 2018


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


Guernewood 
Project 


Escrow Funds


State Loan 
58340


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


Annual Debt: $932,957 
(county) + $99,000 


(WA)


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


Policy 
Reserve: 


(calc. FYE 2018)


$1,265,940 


Fund 76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76759 76761 76762


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0400
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0700
7106


0900
7106


1100
7106


1200


FP1-Jul $37,077.06 $204,586.92 $123,508.03 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $491,931.25 $71,908.65 $266,473.85 $2,515.75 $146,863.42 $102,315.00 $674,243.49 $1,987,084.44 $923,215.61


FP2-Aug $37,077.06 $207,454.87 $123,508.03 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $478,551.25 $71,908.65 $279,580.95 $2,515.75 $146,863.42 $102,315.00 $218,059.49 $1,530,627.54 $469,626.66


FP3-Sept $37,860.58 $206,941.56 $123,508.03 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $441,685.47 $71,908.65 $279,580.95 $0.00 $73,554.41 $102,315.00 $218,059.49 $1,417,937.00 $358,938.56


FP4-Oct $37,860.58 $196,833.74 $299,861.49 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $410,754.84 $71,293.86 $288,350.41 $0.00 $73,554.41 $102,315.00 $218,059.49 $1,571,514.50 $502,408.24


FP5-Nov $37,860.58 $199,373.10 $299,861.49 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $174,962.07 $69,734.49 $288,350.41 $0.00 $73,554.41 $102,315.00 $218,059.49 $1,334,162.36 $267,595.46


FP6-Dec $37,477.54 $190,711.85 $469,861.49 $10,850.00 $96,475.00 $118,813.98 $69,107.46 $693,269.46 $0.00 $73,554.41 $102,315.00 $218,059.49 $1,852,306.29 $777,078.14


FP7-Jan $37,477.54 $201,502.22 $294,180.89 $25,850.00 $246,475.00 $475,388.19 $30,778.78 $986,751.25 $0.00 $73,554.41 $302,315.00 $110,021.28 $2,545,314.80 $1,480,877.02


FP8-Feb $37,477.54 $205,287.65 $294,180.89 $25,850.00 $246,475.00 $463,012.10 $29,235.71 $993,280.15 $0.00 $73,554.41 $302,315.00 $3,011.28 $2,430,914.54 $1,370,262.19


FP9-Mar $41,286.94 $208,017.85 $294,180.89 $25,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $29,235.71 $526,592.25 $0.00 $146,945.40 $302,315.00 $786,011.28 $2,357,605.53 $1,299,683.38


FP10-Apr $41,286.94 $212,220.26 $297,474.82 $25,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $29,235.71 $650,031.19 $0.00 $146,945.40 $507,019.00 $786,011.28 $2,689,042.40 $1,635,322.66


FP11-May $41,286.94 $205,540.47 $397,474.82 $25,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $29,235.71 $592,531.19 $0.00 $146,945.40 $507,019.00 $786,011.28 $2,731,542.40 $1,671,142.87


FP12-Jun $42,621.30 $214,170.83 $241,819.82 $25,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $29,235.71 $769,691.69 $0.00 $146,945.40 $507,019.00 $786,011.28 $2,753,047.90 $1,701,278.73


FP 13 
(FINAL)


$42,621.30 $214,170.83 $245,519.11 $25,850.00 $246,475.00 $0.00 $29,235.71 $789,646.59 $ 0.00 $146,945.40 $507,019.00 $786,011.28 $2,776,702.09 $1,724,932.92


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


Reserves Above 
Policy 


(PARS + COUNTY - 
GUERNEWOOD PK 


ESCROW)


** Available Funds:  76758 and 76759 (State Loan reserve funds)  (These columns are hidden)
*** Starting FY 2017-18, Bldg Fund and PARS considered part of Reserves


TOTAL at 
COUNTY 


 











 


County Balances FY 2019-20 and Reserves Above Policy
 


TOTAL at 
COUNTY 


GRAND TOTAL: 
COUNTY + USDA 
+ PARS/CERBT


FY 2019-20 Policy 


Reserves: $1,379,359


Reserves Above 
Policy


$42,621.30 $214,170.83 $245,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,235.71 $789,646.59 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $105,662.08 $2,776,702.09 $3,139,156.30 1,759,797.30


NAME


CERBT 
(Contributions are 
part of Reserves)


PARS
(Contributions are part 


of Reserves)


Operations Bldg Fund
(part of Oper Res)


FY 2019-20 
POLICY 


RESERVES: 
$1,379,359


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


State Loan 
58340


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


USDA Bond Debt
(at WestAmerica)


CONTRIBUTIONS: CONTRIBUTIONS: ($1,122,991)


Fund
$30,518 $200,000 76751 76752 76753 76755 76756 76759 76762  


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0900
7106


1200  


FP1-Jul $42,621.30 $215,332.01 $295,519.11 $25,850.00 $753,494.00 $29,000.81 $724,549.83 $146,945.40 $786,011.28 $124,164.15 $2,761,370.43 $3,143,487.89 1,764,128.89


FP2-Aug $42,621.30 $214,435.22 $10,519.11 $25,850.00 $1,122,991.00 $29,000.81 $629,178.16 $146,945.40 $211,963.07 $124,166.19 $2,176,447.55 $2,557,670.26 1,178,311.26


FP3-Sept


FP4-Oct


FP5-Nov


FP6-Dec


FP7-Jan


FP8-Feb


FP9-Mar


FP10-Apr


FP11-May


FP12-Jun


FP 13 
(FINAL)


          


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as 


"Vendors Payable")


 


** Available Funds:  76758 and 76759 (State Loan reserve funds); 76754 (Fed Loan); 76757 (Guernewood Park); 76761 (Cap and Debt policy reserve)   (These columns are hidden)
*** Starting FY 2017-18, Bldg Fund and PARS considered part of Reserves; Starting FY 2019-20, CERBT is also part of reserves, but only the contributions (not earnings) to PARS and CERBT are included


 







 


$945,634*
 


7%


TOTAL PYMTS:


1  


2 10 years $135,000/year $1,347,000


3 7 years $177,000/year $1,229,000


4 5 years $231,000/year $1,154,000


5 3 years $361,000/year $1,081,000


6 Staff recommendation
$135,000/year for 7 years to 


reimburse Policy Reserve 
(0% interest after 2 years)


$976,828


* Only considers current  PERS UL, not future changes to the total.


For now, $79,000/year but more in the first years, less in 
the later years.  Total payments:     $2,130,000


Various payoff schedules to pay off current PERS unfunded 
liability*


Approximate unfunded liability to
address (FY 2018-19): 


Interest rate:


Current Plan: We are 3 years into 
a 30-year payoff, adding add'l 
liabilities as accrued





		Item V-A - District Unfunded CalPERS Pension Liability - Part II

		$120,000 to $945,000 this fiscal year, depending on the Board's decision.   Absorbing fiscal impacts this fiscal year will be more than offset by savings on UL expense in future years.  

		The FY 2019-20 budget provides for a total of $120,000 for unfunded pension liability expense.  Of this, $55,451 is a mandatory payment, and $64,549 is an extra payment.  This does not include ongoing pension expenses, budgeted at $95,000 this fiscal year.



		Item V-A.1 - Ordinance 41, Establishing a District Reserve 12-03-2009

		Item V-C - District Reserve Policy Ordinance

		Item V-C.1 ORD 41 - District Reserve Policy



		Item V-A.2 - County Funds FY 18-19

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00



		Item V-A.3 - County Funds FY 2018-19 proposed revisions

		Item V-A.4 - County Acctg Funds FY 19-20

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00



		Item V-A.5 - Various payoff schedules

		UL Extra Pymt Options








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V- B 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 3, 2019   
 
Subject:  Lower Harrison Tank Project   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


At the September 5th Board meeting, there was an update by the GM related to 
subsidence issues on the bank near the Lower Harrison Tank.  Heidi Utterback 
with Coastland Engineering is managing the project in the interim as John 
Wanger has been on vacation.  Ms. Utterback informed us that RGH completed 
the Geotech portion of the cost estimate.  Coastland will get the survey costs 
shortly and get the District a draft proposal by September 27, 2019.     
 
 
 
   


 





		Meeting Date: October 3, 2019  






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V - C 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 3, 2019   
 
Subject:  OLD MONTE RIO ROAD REPAIR STATUS UPDATE   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


Old Monte Rio Road was damaged two years ago due to flooding and 
subsidence.  FEMA was contacted by the District, and assistance was tentatively 
granted.  The District was directed to coordinate the repair effort through 
Sonoma County.  Sonoma County recently informed the District after the bids 
were let for the project.  The District has a 6” HDPE line that must be replaced 
within the project.  The bids were awarded two weeks ago.  We have reached 
out to the County to coordinate the project.  As of September 25, 2019, no work 
has begun, and no utility locates have taken place.  The District had not heard 
anything from the County as to the start of the project until September 27th.  We 
were given the name of Sara Fredrick with the County Public Works and Ms. 
Frederick called us back promptly and discussed a pre-construction meeting and 
start of the project in mid October. 
 
   


 





		Meeting Date: October 3, 2019  






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V- D 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 3, 2019   
 
Subject:  Backup Generator Power for PG&E Outages   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


At the September 5th Board meeting, there was some discussion about 
generators and fuel preparedness to plan for any scheduled PG&E electric 
outages that may last for several days.  The staff has done an extensive review 
of all sites with generators and sites that portable generators can be used.  The 
data shows a very good preparedness level for the vast majority of the service 
area.  Some intermittent lack of water may occur while portable generators are 
being moved.  Fuel delivery should not be an issue as the tanker truck resides in 
our service area and the fuel loading station also has generator backup.  The 
fuel vendor can also deliver 55-gallon drums if necessary.  There are two 
generator purchases recommended.  The smaller generator will be purchased 
right away, and the larger generator will be budgeted for FY 2021.  Attachment 
A details more data around locations, storage and days of run-time per full tank 
of fuel.  
 
 
 
   


 







GENERATOR LOCATION SIZE FUEL SIZE (Gallons) FUEL TYPE SUMMER DAYS OF FUEL WINTER DAYS OF FUEL STORAGE W/O GENERATOR MOBILE


El Bonita 250 KW 335 diesel 2.25 3.75 1.0 Days (Summer)/ 1.75 Days (Winter) YES


Monte Rio Filter Plant 125KW 240 diesel 6.5 11 1.0 Days (Summer)/ 1.75 Days (Winter) Yes


Canyon Three Booster 45 KW 200 propane 5.5 gal propane /hour 1.5-days YES


Park Avenue Booster 55 KW 100 diesel 0.86 gal diesel /hour 4.75-days YES


Highland Treatment Plant 10 KW 100 diesel 1 gal diesel /hour 4-days NO


SSWD Office 10 KW 96 propane 1.75 gal propane/hour 2.25-days NO


LOCATIONS W/O GENERATORS PLUGS NOTES RECOMMENDATIONS


Eagles Nest Booster/Tank Five Services Bottled Water 


Canyon four booster 4-5 Services Bottled Water 


Monta Rosa booster Install Generator Connection


Hidden Valley Boosterr 15-20 psi w/o Power No Action


Santa Rosa Booster Two Services; Lower Pressure w/ No Power Bottled Water 


Crespo Booster Bypass Valve Available to Feed System Bottled Water (1 Service)


Northwood Booster 3 Services; Bypass Valve Will be Installed to Feed System Install Bypass Valve


Upper Summit Avenue Booster 35 psi at Upper Site When Summit Booster No Action


is Running


LOCATIONS WITH GENERATOR PLUGS SIZE FUEL SIZE FUEL TYPE DAYS OF FUEL RECOMMENDATIONS


Harrison Tank and Booster None (Can Use 45KW OR 55KW) N/A N/A 3 Gal Per Hour Purchase 55KW Diesel Generator


Lower Summit Booster and Tank 45KW OR 55KW N/A N/A 3 Gal Per Hour


Wright Drive Booster and Tank 6.5kw Six Gallons Gas 1.5  Gal Per Hour


Shoenman Booster and Tank 6.5kw Six Gallons Gas 1.5  Gal Per Hour


Schoolhousse Booster and Tank None (Can Use 6.5KW) N/A N/A N/A Purchase 6.5KW Generator


NOTE:  THE 45 AND 55 KW GENERATORS ARE ON PORTABLE TRAILERS


AND CAN BE USED AT HARRISON BOOSTER,PARK AVE BOOSTER,LOWER SUMMIT BOOSTER


AND CANYON THREE BOOSTER.


WE HAVE TWO HONDA EM 6500 SX GENERATORS THAT CAN PLUG INTO AND POWER


WRIGHT DRIVE BOOSTER, SHOENMAN BOOSTER, AND SCHOOL HOUSE BOOSTER.


FUEL DELIVERY FROM REDWOOD COAST HAS BEEN CONFIRMED.  TANKER RESIDES IN SERVICE AREA AND LOADING FACILITY HAS GENERATOR.  ALSO, 55 GALLON DRUMS CAN BE DELIVER IF NEEDED.





		Item V-D - Backup Power for PG&E Outages

		Meeting Date: October 3, 2019  



		Item V-D.1 - Attachment A Generator Spreadsheet






Resolution No. 19-12 


A Resolution of the Board and Staff of the Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Expressing Appreciation for the Services of Field Manager  


Kevin Gilman Upon His Departure 
 


WHEREAS, Kevin, notwithstanding several hints of impending retirement over the years, 
nonetheless soldiered on as the Field Manager of the District from 1992-2019; and 


WHEREAS, during his Tenure Kevin proved Shovel-Ready to push forward with Capital 
Improvements, deal with Personalities of all sorts, and improve the District's overall performance; and 


WHEREAS, Kevin approached the many Challenges put before him Thoughtfully and with a 
Refreshing Upbeat Ability to Get Things Done; and 


WHEREAS, Kevin has shown Humility recognizing that his ability to succeed while serving the 
District over the years required a lot of help, cooperation, and sacrifice from the entire staff, and is 
extremely appreciative of each and every staff member.  Kevin thanks the past and present GMs, Office 
Manager, Account Clerks, Crew Supervisors, and all the Field Operators very much; and 


WHEREAS, Kevin also recognizes, appreciates and give a huge thank you to each and every 
member of the District Board of Directors and wants them to know that he often thinks about how 
incredibly generous and thoughtful they are to sacrifice their time, free of charge, for the good of the 
Water District and all the people they serve; and 


WHEREAS, Kevin Gilman inspires Trust.  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by a grateful Staff and Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, that: 


Kevin Gilman is a Great Leader, displays responsibility and accountability, and has 
communicated the importance and value to each member of the staff and Board.  Thank 
you. 


Signed and approved this 3rd day of October 2019, by:  
 
The Board: 


Tim Lipinski, President      
Gaylord Schaap       
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Rich Holmer       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      
 


The Staff and Meter Reader:        


Jack Bushgen       Julie Kenny      
Bryon Edgmon      Ed Fortner                                                        
Christine Hanley      Nicole King                 
Keith McDonald      Bernard O'Brien                                              
Ryan Wilson       Dale Dross                                                        
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 3, 2019   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in August were 24,886 units (57.1 AF Monte 


Rio cycle), and production was 78.6 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were higher, 
and production was slightly lower (59.2 AF and 76.4 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows 
sales, production and % difference for the combined systems; the water loss trend was up 
slightly this month (17.9%).  Looking at the data over the last ten years, water production 
has dropped approximately 29%, and sales have dropped 18%.  Water loss percentage was 
around 30% and now is in the 15-20% range.  Much of the production and water loss drop 
can be attributed to the capital projects funded by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is 
probably due to the drought public education; it's unlikely historic use levels will return 
soon.    


 
3.  Leaks:  In September, we had six total leak repairs with 24 hours on it.  Two leaks were in 


Monte Rio, two in Guerneville, and two in Rio Nido.  All leaks were in older lines.  That is 
fewer leaks and person-hours compared to the prior month and the same number of leaks 
and more person-hours compared to August one year ago (6 and 15).  Figure 2 shows 
service and main leaks separately with a total leak line as well.  Looking at the leaks chart 
over the last ten years we've come down from around 300 leaks per month to just over 100 
- quite a difference and very noticeable in what the field crews are able to do - address 
ongoing issues with in-house projects instead of chasing leaks every day.     


   
4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  September rainfall was .06” which is lower than the long-term 


average month and keeps the yearly total slightly above the long-term annual average.        







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 
  
5.   2019 CIP:  Piazza completed the installation of the ATEC filters.  The ATEC system is 


now fully permitted and operational, and demolition of the old greensand system is 
underway.  


 
6.   In-House Construction Projects: There was one in-house construction project in 


September, a 1” service upgrade at 15430 Hay Lane (Guerneville).  Thirty-four hours were 
required to complete the project.  There were no toilet rebates.   


 
7.   Personnel:  The District will be advertising for two new Maintenance Workers.   


 
8.   Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law:  Continue to work on 


implementation by 02/2020 deadline.   
 


9.   SSWD Website Update: Continue to investigate. 
 


10. Flushing:  System Hydrant Flushing will begin in October in Guerneville and continue to 
Monte Rio, finishing in late November.  Advance notice has been mailed to all customers 
and the schedule posted to our website. 


 
11.  Cross-Connection Survey and Fall Flood Warning:  These two items were mailed out 


to customers in the September and October bill mailings, as required by the Division of 
Drinking Water.  We have received many responses to the cross-connection survey.   


 
12.  Water Audit Validation:  The GM completed the 2018 Water Audit using free software 


from AWWA.  Validation of the results was performed by Sonoma Water.  Our annual non-
revenue water percentage was 16.2%.  The Audit was successfully uploaded/ submitted to 
the State portal. 


 
13.  Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for October, FY 2020.   


 
          


 
 


 
 
 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 







 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 


General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 


 





		Meeting Date: October 3, 2019  



